
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor George V. Lob           Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain                                     Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA (Revised) 

Monday, August 11, 2014 – 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive  

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Bain 
 

Salute to the Flag: Audience Participation  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  

 
A) August Yard of the Month – 560 Quail Avenue – Herman J. & Marilyn Steffen 

 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign 
the register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 23, 2014 – Regular Meeting 

 
B) July 2, 2014 – Special Meeting  

 
C) July 24, 2014 – Special Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None 

 
7. Public Hearings:  

 
A) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 150-015, Parking Of Commercial Vehicles 
In City Limits, To Update And Clarify Which Commercial Vehicles May Or May Not Be Parked In 
The Residential, Multi-Family Residential, Business, And Commercial Zoning Districts Of The 
City; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Effective Date 
 
 
 
 
 



 
B) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs Creating Code Of Ordinance Section 103.02, Regulations Against Squatting; 
Providing Definitions; Prohibiting Squatting; Creating Duty To Prevent Squatting; Establishing 
Penalties; Providing Authority To Remove Squatters And File Liens; Delineating A Notice And 
Hearing Process; Creating A Presumption Of Squatting; Providing Cumulative Remedies; 
Establishing Immunizations Of City Officers And Staff; Severability; Repealing All Ordinances Or 
Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Directions To Codifiers; Effective Date 

 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  

 
A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for July 2014 in the Amount of $12,433.50 as 

Funds were approved in the FY 13/14 Budget 
 
B)  Recommendation by Golf that Council award a Bid to Florida Superior Sand, 

utilizing Miami Dade County Bid # 9408-1/14-1, in the amount of $26,000  for medium grade 
sand as funds were approved in the FY13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the 
City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Titleist, as a sole 

source provider , in the amount of  $ 10,000.00  for merchandise as funds were approved in the 
FY13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
D)  Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to RLJ Services, as 

a sole source provider , in the amount of  $5,000.00,  for fertilizing and topdressing the tees and 
fairways as funds were approved in the FY13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of 
the City Code 

 
E)  Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Hector Turf, as a 

sole source provider , in the amount of  $2,000.00, for parts needed to make repairs on Toro 
equipment as funds were approved in the FY13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) 
of the City Code 

 
F) Recommendation by Golf that Council award a Bid to Howard’s Fertilizer and 

Chemical, utilizing Town of Davie Bid # B-12-34-3, in the amount of $3,500  for pre-emergent 
fertilizers as funds were approved in the FY13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of 
the City Code 

 
G) Recommendation by Public Works that Council waive the competitive bid process 

and approve an expenditure to Vector Fleet Management for fleet maintenance services for 
$193,603.00, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code and pursuant to the contract 
renewal option provided by the City’s existing contract/contract vendor for an additional one year 
period 

 
H) Public Works requests Council approve a change order to increase PO 140454, to 

Wrangler Construction in the amount of $2,170.95, for DERM required modifications of two 
storm water catch basins for the Plover alley drainage project.  Council approved $49,465.00, 
January 27, 2014. Funds were approved in the FY 13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(F)(11)(b) of the City Code 

 
 



I) Recommendation by Public Works that Council Award a Bid to Wrangler 
Construction, utilizing Miami Dade County RPQ # 20130171, in the amount of $41,760.00, for 
the repair of damaged curbing and sidewalk on main circle, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (5) of 
the City Code 

 
J) Recommendation by Public Works that Council award a bid to Wrangler 

Construction, utilizing Miami Dade County RPQ # 20130171, in the amount of $16,016.00, for 
repair of roadway damage on the main traffic circle, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the 
City Code 

 
K) Recommendation by Public Works that Council award a bid to Metro Express, 

utilizing Miami Dade County contract # 20130244, in the amount of $170,050.00, for Mokena 
Drive stormwater project, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code. Funds available in 
the stormwater fund. 

 
L) Recommendation by Building and Code Compliance that Council waive the 

competitive bid process and approve an expenditure to Angel M. Alvarez, on an “as needed 
basis” in the amount of $8,000, for Roofing Plan Reviews, and roofing and building inspections 
as funds were approved in the FY 13/14 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City 
Code 

 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Presentation by Bermello Ajamil & Partners (B&A) on their updated floor concept 
for the Aquatic Facility 
 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Providing For The Fourth Budget Amendment To The FY 2013-2014 Budget; By Increasing The 
Fund Balance And Recreation And Culture Budgets Of The General Fund; Recording The Con 
Edison Energy Conservation Project, Aquatic Facility Project Consultants Contracts And Costs 
Associated With The Aquatic Facility Project In The Capital Projects Budget Of The Special 
Revenue And Capital Projects Fund; Providing Intent; Specifying Compliance With Budgetary 
Processes And Procedures; Effective Date 
 
 B) Discussion concerning in-house processing of M-DC Traffic Engineering requests 
Ludlam Road - Linwood Intersection Parking Issue resulting in M-DC Traffic Division 
Involvement 
 
 C)  Curtiss Mansion Inc. (CMI) Proposed Agreement Amendment - Increase City 
usage to 15 times a year and include local schools and other non-profits 
 
11. Other Business:  

 
A) Presentation – PACE South Florida and Clean Green Energy Corridor program by 

Rafael Perez (Item has been deferred to August 25, 2014 Council Meeting) 
 
B) Aquatic Facility Financing Options 
 
 



C) FY 2013-2014 3rd Quarter Budget Report 
 
D) FY 2014-2015 Budget Update Discussion 
 

12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for 

such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 

corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 
decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation 

of City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or 
reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for 

this purpose and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has 
employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is 

available from the Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Herman J. & Marilyn Steffen 
 

Of 
 

560 QUAIL AVENUE 
 

for their home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
AUGUST 2014 

 
Presented this 11th day of August, 2014. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
 

___________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 

       City Clerk 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, June 23, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:05 p.m. 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor George V. Lob  
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden  
Police Captain Jonathan Kahn 
Building & Code Compliance Director H. “Tex” Ziadie 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Petralanda.  
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Awards & Presentations: 

 
A) July Yard of the Month – 450 Cardinal Street – Jose and Susana Reyes 

 
Jose and Susana Reyes were not present to receive the award.   
 
4. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Kalyn Safreed 1180 Ibis Avenue, Nestor Suarez, 550 Wren Avenue, Beatrix Obermann, 
449 Swallow Drive, Judge Nuria Saenz, not provided, Arlene Hawks, 549 Payne Drive.  

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes:  

 
A) June 9, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
B) June 16, 2014 – Special Meeting 

 
Minutes of the June 9, 2014 Regular meeting and June 16, 2014 Special meeting were 
approved as written. 
 



 
 2 

Councilman Bain moved to approve the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the 
motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 
  
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 

 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted)  

 
A) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to Royal Rent-A-Car of Florida, the lowest responsible quote of $17,088.00, for 
the monthly rental of two vehicles (for twelve-month period), as these qualify for 
expenditure from the Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(C)(2) of the City Code 

 
City Manager Ron Gorland read the agenda memo for the record and stated that there was 
a correction on the dates of the agreement. 
 
Vice Mayor Lob moved to approve consent agenda item 8A as amended with the 
correct date. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which was carried 5-0 on 
roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
  
9. Old Business: 

 
A) Determination of the aquatic facility site plan (Bermello Ajamil & Partners 

(B&A)). 
 

Michael Gavila of 684 Morningside Drive spoke on the item at this time. 
 
Consultant Willy Bermello of Bermello Ajamil & Partners provided a brief synopsis of the 
last meeting on June 16th.  He also presented the updated conceptual drawings that were 
selected by the City Council at the previous meeting for Option No. 2 and Option No. 3, 
based on a $5MM budget.  Option No. 2 locates the pool on the northern end of the 
property and Option No. 3 locates the pool against the existing community center. Per 
Council’s request at the previous meeting, he presented details for a possible 
“lobby/annex” that consolidates and ties the community center and aquatic facility together, 
allowing for a centralized entry and security check point to both. 
 
Mr. Bermello presented ideas and pricing for possible hybrid designs that would combine 
the aspect of competitive swimming with minimum lap lanes and a leisure pool. Following a 
decision on one of the options, they will proceed to finalize the master plan in July and 
begin the design work in August. 
 
The City Council requested that the public have more input and feedback on the proposed 
conceptual drawings and suggested that an additional meeting be scheduled. 
 
Council scheduled a Special Meeting for Wednesday, July 2, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
 



 
 3 

Mayor Garcia called for a recess at 8:53 p.m. The meeting was reconvened at 9:06 p.m. 
 
10. New Business:  

 
A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs Amending Code Of Ordinance Section 150-015, Parking Of Commercial 
Vehicles In City Limits, To Update And Clarify Which Commercial Vehicles May Or May 
Not Be Parked In The Residential, Multi-Family Residential, Business, And Commercial 
Zoning Districts Of The City; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; 
Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the title of the ordinance. He called attention to changes 
that were made within the ordinance since it was last discussed. 
 
Nery Owens of 169 Corydon Drive spoke on the proposed ordinance. 
 
Councilman Windrem moved to approve the ordinance on first reading as amended.  
Councilman Bain seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding vehicle signage and wrapping. 
 
The motion was carried 3-2 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain voting Yes; Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting No. 
 
 B) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Council Of The City 
Of Miami Springs Creating Code Of Ordinance Section 103.02, Regulations Against 
Squatting; Providing Definitions; Prohibiting Squatting; Creating Duty To Prevent Squatting; 
Establishing Penalties; Providing Authority To Remove Squatters And File Liens; 
Delineating A Notice And Hearing Process; Creating A Presumption Of Squatting; 
Providing Cumulative Remedies; Establishing Immunizations Of City Officers And Staff; 
Severability; Repealing All Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In Conflict; Directions To 
Codifiers; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the title of the ordinance. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the ordinance on first reading. Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote 
was as follows: Vice Mayor Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 C) Building and Code Fee Schedule Amendment  
 
Building and Code Compliance Director Harold “Tex” Ziadie presented his recommendation 
to amend four items in the Building and Code Fee Schedule and to place a resolution on 
the agenda for the July 2nd Special meeting. 
 



 
 4 

Recommendation A reduces the fee for commercial window sign permits to $50.00; 
Recommendation B amends the fees for plan review by the Planning and Zoning Director; 
Recommendation C provides for a $55.00 fee for low voltage alarm labels and 
Recommendation D provides for a fee for commercial vehicle variances. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve recommendations A, B, C and D. Councilman 
Windrem seconded the motion for discussion. 
 
Councilman Bain amended his motion to approve A, B, and D and Councilman 
Windrem seconded the amended motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and 
Mayor Garcia Yes. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding permits for low voltage alarm systems and Council requested 
additional information for the next meeting. 
 
11. Other Business: 
 

A) FY 2014-2015 Base Budget Presentation 
 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director Alonso presented preliminary estimates for the FY 
2014-2015 budget indicating a budget surplus at the current millage rate of 7.6710 and a 
millage rate of 7.5789 to balance the budget without a surplus.  The budget is based on the 
June 1st estimate for property values and the final numbers will be received on July 1st. 
 
City Manager Gorland will meet individually with Council members to go over the proposed 
budget during the month of July. 
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney had no report at this time.  
 
 B) City Manager announced that the Classic Auto Show would be held July 3rd 
on the Circle at 6:00 p.m. and the July 4th parade begins at 10:00 a.m. 
 
 C) City Council 
 
Councilman Petralanda had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Lob reported his oldest daughter will attend graduate school at the University of 
Florida and he wished everyone a good night. 
 
Councilman Windrem had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Mayor Garcia referred to the South Florida Executive magazine on the dais and the 
featured articles on the President of the Latin Builders Association and the President of 
Link Construction. 
 
 



 
 5 

13. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 11th  day of August, 2014. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, July 2, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:03 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor George V. Lob  
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden  
Police Captain Jonathan Kahn 
Building & Code Compliance Director H. “Tex” Ziadie 
Professional Services Supervisor Tammy Romero 
Deputy City Clerk Suzanne S. Hitaffer 
 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Windrem.  
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 

 
3. Discussion on the Aquatic Facility  
 
 A) Determination of the aquatic facility site plan [Bermello Ajamil & 

Partners (B&A)]  
 
Mayor Garcia asked those persons wishing to speak to please come forward. The following 
spoke on the aquatic facility: Evelio Cabrera of 540 Hunting Lodge Drive, Jeanne Raymond 
of 621 Oriole Avenue, Suzie Gavila of 684 Morningside Drive, Nestor Suarez of 550 Wren 
Avenue, Charlene Anderson of 887 Heron Avenue, Suzie Medina of 209 Chippewa Street, 
Orlando Ceballos of 1015 Bluebird Avenue and Tony Lima of 841 Wren Avenue. 
 
 



 
 2 

Consultant Willy Bermello, of Bermello Ajamil & Partners, recapped the presentation that 
was made at the June 23, 2014 Council meeting on the various alternatives for the aquatic 
facility design.  He referred to the updated PowerPoint presentation that was provided to 
Council representing samples of pools, various facilities and elements that can be part of a 
hybrid pool based on a budget not to exceed $5MM.  
 
The City Council discussed Concept 2 and Concept 3 site plan options for a hybrid pool 
that combine lap swimming, play areas, slides, and zero entry. 
 
Mayor Garcia called for a recess at 8:51 p.m. The meeting was reconvened at 9:03 p.m. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve Concept 2.  Councilman Windrem seconded the 
motion for discussion. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the pros and cons for Concept 2 with the pool on the north 
side of the site plan, and Concept 3 with the pool abutting the existing Community Center. 
 
The motion was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
Council requested an additional public meeting on Friday, August 22nd to receive citizen 
input prior to the presentation of the final schematic at the August 25th Council meeting. 
  

4. Consent Agenda (considered after Agenda Item 5) 
  

A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for June 2014 in the Amount of 
$13,115.25, as Funds were approved in the FY 13/14 Budget 
 

B) Recommendation by Golf and Country Club that Council approve an 
expenditure to Miami Herald, as a sole source provider , in the amount of  $3,500.00,  for 
marketing and advertising in a larger circulation as funds were approved in the FY13/14 
Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the consent agenda. Councilman Windrem 
seconded the motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes. 
 
 

5. Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Current “Schedule Of Charges” For Building, Plumbing, Electrical, 
Mechanical And Other Related Permit Charges Or Fees; Effective Date. 
 
This item was considered as the first order of business. City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read 
the title of the resolution. 
 
 



 
 3 

Councilman Bain moved to approve the resolution. Vice Mayor Lob seconded the 
motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 

6. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:38 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 11th day of August, 2014. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, July 24, 2014, 5:01 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 5:08 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor George V. Lob  
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Petralanda.  
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Setting The Tentative Operating Millage Levy For Fiscal Year 2014-2015; Setting Time, 
Date And Place For Public Hearings On The Proposed 2014-2015 Budget And Tentative 
Millage Rate 
 
Councilman Windrem moved to approve a millage rate of 7.9995.  Vice Mayor Lob 
seconded the motion for discussion. After brief discussion, Councilman Windrem 
withdrew his motion. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve a millage rate of 7.6710.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion which was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Lob, Councilmen Windrem, Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes. 
  

4. Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 5:13 p.m. 
 
 



 
 2 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 11th day of August, 2014. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY 
DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL 
NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT 
VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE 
APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF 
OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE 
ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO.   -2014 
 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE 
SECTION 150-015, PARKING OF COMMERCIAL VEHICLES 
IN CITY LIMITS, TO UPDATE AND CLARIFY WHICH 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLES MAY OR MAY NOT BE PARKED 
IN THE RESIDENTIAL, MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 
BUSINESS, AND COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICTS OF 
THE CITY; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City ordinance related to the parking of commercial vehicles 
in the City has not been reviewed or updated in many years; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City has become aware of the recent trends related to the 

operation of vans, trucks, and sport utility vehicles instead of standard automobiles for 
family purposes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it has also become apparent that many of the vehicles being 

used for family transportation are also being used in family businesses; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the use and nature of the vehicles currently being purchased and 

operated for family and business purposes are sufficiently different from single use family 
automobiles to justify a review of the City’s parking provisions; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there appears to be sufficient current justification to permit the 

parking of certain vehicles previously categorized as “commercial vehicles” in the various 
zoning districts of the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, despite the current justification for the amendment of the City’s 

commercial vehicle parking regulations, it is equally apparent that the same trends  today 
from single purpose automobiles to larger multi-purpose vehicles requires the enactment of 
restrictions, limitations, and controls on the parking of the current day “commercial 
vehicles” within the various zoning districts of the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received presentations from City Staff and 

conducted extensive debate at public meetings regarding the updating and revising of the 
City’s current commercial vehicle parking Ordinance; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the updated, clarified, and 

revised provisions presented regarding the parking of commercial vehicles in the City is in 
the best interests of the City and its citizens: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 

 
 
Section 1: That Code of Ordinance Section 150-015 – Parking of commercial 

vehicles in City limits, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Sec. 150-015. - Parking of commercial vehicles in City limits.  
 
(A) It shall be unlawful for any person to park any commercial vehicle or truck of 

one-ton load capacity or over, and any motor vehicle commonly known as a 
bus, which term shall include vehicles, excluding station wagons, used for 
the transportation of school children, or any trailer with or without 
refrigeration motors, in or upon any public or private property, including off-
street parking facilities, in any zoned residential district of the City as 
designated on the official zoning map referred to in § 150-003, for a period of 
time in excess of two hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m., and at any 
time between 6:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., or upon any public or private property 
including off-street parking facilities in any other zoning district of the City for 
a period of time in excess of two hours at any time, unless specific 
permission to do so has been secured in writing from the City Manager or his 
duly authorized designee. The authority to grant specific permission to 
deviate from the provisions of this section shall be limited as follows:  
 
(1) If permission for additional parking hours only is being requested, no 

more than an additional seven hours for each seven day period may 
be granted. 
  

(2) If permission for additional days of parking is being requested, no 
more than seven days for each six month period may be granted.  

 
(3) Any requests in excess of the foregoing for additional parking hours or 

for additional days of parking may only be authorized by the securing 
of a variance from the City. A record of such written permission shall 
be maintained in the City's official records and copies provided to the 
police department and code enforcement officer. 

  
(B) The term commercial vehicle as herein used shall mean a motor vehicle of 

the above described capacity not designated exclusively for the 
transportation of persons.  
 

(A) Parking of commercial vehicles in the single family residential zoning districts 
of the City. 
 
(1) The following vehicles shall be permitted to park in the single family 

residential zoning districts of the City as provided herein. 
 
 
 
 

http://library.municode.com/HTML/13202/level3/TITXVLAUS_CH150ZOCO_ARTIINGE.html#TITXVLAUS_CH150ZOCO_ARTIINGE_S150-003DIES


 3 

(a) Approved Parking - All cars, trucks, vans, or sport utility 
vehicles that do not exceed 10,000 pounds of gross vehicle 
weight, 22 feet in length, and 8 feet in height may park in any 
approved parking location in any single family residential 
zoning district of the City. 
 
 

(b) Approved Additions to Vehicles - All cars, trucks, vans, or sport 
utility vehicles approved for parking in Section (a) above may 
also be permitted to be equipped with the following vehicle 
additions. 

 
(1) Signage 
(2) Elevated Racks, including the carrying of ladders, pipes, 

lumber, or any other similar items, so long as such 
equipment is properly and safely secured to the vehicle.  

(3) Equipment Cabinets and Bed Coverings, so long as 
such equipment is properly and safely secured to the 
vehicle. However, the approval of this equipment shall 
not be construed to allow the carrying of materials or 
supplies in the rear or beds of vehicles unless 
contained within equipment cabinets or covered in a 
manner which eliminates both the view of, and access 
to, the materials or supplies. 

 
(c) Specially Customized Vehicles - Any specially customized 

vehicles that exceed the previously established dimensions for 
approved parking in the Single Family Residential Zoning 
Districts of the City may be approved for such parking, in the 
sole and exclusive discretion of the City Code Compliance 
Department, if a written request is submitted by the vehicle 
owner for a determination that the subject vehicle contains 
specially customized features, is clearly “non-commercial” in 
nature and appearance, and will only be used for social driving 
purposes. The Code Compliance Department determination 
may require that any specially customized vehicles be parked 
in the rear or side yard of any residential property and properly 
screened from adjacent properties. 
 

(d) Residential Parking Variances - Except for the vehicles that are 
specially prohibited from parking in the single family residential 
zoning districts of the City set forth in this Ordinance, any cars, 
trucks, vans, or sport utility vehicles that exceed the weight, 
length, and height limitations for approved residential zoning 
district parking and are used exclusively for family 
transportation may apply for a variance to park in such 
districts. The variance process shall be conducted in the same 
manner and in conformity with the same standards and 
requirements that are applicable to the consideration of the 
granting of variances for alternate rear or side yard approved 
parking of recreational vehicles in the City. 
 



 4 

(e) Daytime and Visitation Parking - All commercial vehicles that 
are providing repair or other services to any single family 
residential property in the City may park in any approved 
parking location in the residential zoning districts of the City 
from 8 o’ clock a.m. to 5 o’ clock p.m. daily. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, no violation of this provision will be issued if the 
code compliance department determines that a reasonable 
enlargement of the authorized parking periods provided is 
required in order to complete an ongoing repair project or to 
perform emergency repair services to a residential homesite. In 
addition, any residents of the City who regularly operate 
commercial vehicles as part of their employment may park 
their commercial vehicles at their single family residences 
during the aforesaid daily hours. However, such parking shall 
not be for the purposes of repairing, cleaning, or the stocking 
of the commercial vehicle. 

 
(2) The following vehicles shall be prohibited from parking in the single 

family residential zoning districts of the City: 
 

(a) The following vehicles are prohibited from parking in the single 
family residential zoning districts of the City, except for 
qualified daytime and visitation parking as previously provided 
in this Ordinance, to wit: 
 
(1) Box trucks 
(2) Equipment carriers 
(3) Trailers/tow trucks 
(4) Lunch/food trucks 
(5) Materials/supplies carriers 
(6) Commercial transport vans 
(7) Buses 
(8) Tractor trailers 
(9) Glass/mirror trucks 
(10) Other vehicles clearly designed for commercial use of 

carriage. 
(11) Other vehicles that present health, safety, or welfare 

hazards to the City. 
 

(b) Notwithstanding any City policy, provision, custom, or code 
section to the contrary, none of the specifically identified 
vehicles in Section 2(a) above shall be eligible to seek parking 
approval by variance or any other means. 

 
(B) Parking of commercial vehicles in the multi-family residential zoning districts 

of the City. 
 
(1) The following vehicles shall be permitted to park in appropriately 

striped parking lots in the multi-family residential zoning districts of the 
City as provided herein. 

 
(a) The vehicles identified in Section (A)(1)(a) of this Ordinance. 



 5 

(b) The vehicles identified in Section (A)(1)(b) of this Ordinance. 
(c) The vehicles identified in Section (A)(1)(c) of this Ordinance. 
(d) The vehicles identified in Section (A)(1)(e) of this Ordinance. 

 
(2) The provisions contained in Section (A)(1)(d) of this Ordinance shall 

also be applicable to vehicle parking in the multi-family residential 
zoning districts of the City. 
 

(3) The following vehicles shall be prohibited from parking in the multi-
family zoning districts of the City. 
 
(a) The vehicles provided in Section (A)(2)(a) of this Ordinance. 
(b) Notwithstanding anything contained in Section (B)(1) above, 

vehicles that require more than one parking space in a single 
vehicle striped parking lot, despite being otherwise approved 
for parking in the multi-family zoning districts of the City, are 
hereby prohibited from parking in such districts. 

 
(C) Parking of Commercial Vehicles in the Business/Commercial, Public 

Properties, and Church Use Only zoning districts of the City - for the 
purposes of this Section, a small commercial vehicle shall be defined as 
anything up to 10,000 pounds of gross vehicle weight, while a large 
commercial vehicle shall be defined as any vehicle in excess of the gross 
vehicle weight of a small commercial vehicle. 

 
(1) Northwest 36th Street District, Abraham Tract District, and Airport/Golf 

District - Large and small commercial vehicles shall be allowed, 
provided that they are parked in appropriately striped parking lots and 
do not require more than one parking space, unless the property has 
specially designated and approved parking spaces for them. Said 
parking shall not be allowed for rental or sale vehicles, unless the 
property owner or lessee has an appropriate license for vehicle 
rentals or sales. No parking shall be allowed for any commercial 
vehicle which could present health, safety or welfare hazards to the 
City, unless specially approved and contained parking is provided for 
said vehicles. 

 
(2) Central Business and Neighborhood Business Districts - Small 

commercial vehicles only shall be allowed, provided that they are 
parked in appropriately striped parking lots and do not require more 
than one parking space, unless the property has specially designated 
and approved parking spaces for them. Said parking shall not be 
allowed for rental or sale vehicles, unless the property owner or 
lessee has an appropriate license for vehicle rentals or sales. No 
parking shall be allowed for any commercial vehicle which could 
present health, safety or welfare hazards to the City, unless specially 
approved and contained parking is provided for said vehicles. 

 
(3) Public Properties District - No parking of commercial vehicles shall be 

allowed on any public property, with the exception of vehicles which 
are providing repair, delivery or other service to adjacent properties 
between the hours of 8 o’ clock a.m. and 5 o’ clock p.m. unless 



 6 

otherwise approved in writing by the City Manager or his designee. No 
parking shall be allowed for any commercial vehicle which could 
present health, safety or welfare hazards to the City, unless specially 
approved and contained parking is provided for said vehicles. 

(4) Church Use Only District - No parking of commercial vehicles shall be 
allowed on any church properties, except vehicles which are providing 
repair, delivery or other service to the church, and vehicles used by 
the church for transportation (buses, vans, etc.) which fall under the 
definition of small commercial vehicles and are parked in 
appropriately striped parking lots and do not require more than one 
parking space, unless the church has specially designated and 
approved parking spaces for them. No parking shall be allowed for 
any commercial vehicle which could present health, safety or welfare 
hazards to the City, unless specially approved and contained parking 
is provided for said vehicles. 

 
 

Section 2: That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 

 
 
Section 3: That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7 

 
 
 
 
 

PASSED ON FIRST READING this 23rd day of June, 2014, on a motion made 
by Councilman Windrem and seconded by Councilman Bain. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of  
 , 2014, on a motion made by    and seconded by    
 . 

 
 

Vice Mayor Lob       
Councilman Windrem      
Councilman Bain       
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia    

 
 
 
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
              
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
            
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 
 
Words -stricken through- shall be deleted.  Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed.  Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO.    - 2014 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS CREATING C O D E  O F  O R D I N AN C E  
SECTION 103.02, REGULATIONS AGAINST 
SQUATTING; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; 
PROHIBITING SQUATTING; CREATING DUTY TO 
PREVENT SQUATTING; ESTABLISHING PENALTIES; 
PROVIDING AUTHORITY TO REMOVE SQUATTERS 
AND FILE LIENS; DELINEATING A NOTICE AND 
HEARING PROCESS; CREATING A PRESUMPTION 
OF SQUATTING; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE 
REMEDIES; ESTABLISHING IMMUNIZATIONS OF 
CITY OFFICERS AND STAFF; SEVERABILITY; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; DIRECTIONS TO 
CODIFIERS; EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
WHEREAS, there are numerous vacant or abandoned properties in Miami-Dade 

County and the phenomenon of squatting in the County has become an increasing 
problem; and 

 
WHEREAS, the unauthorized occupat ion of a residence by squatters poses 

numerous public safety concerns to the lawful owner or lessee and to the surrounding 
community, and is a public nuisance; and 

 
WHEREAS, squatters  have neither an ownership  nor leasehold  interest in the 

property being  occupied,  and  are  therefore  not  affected  if a Code  Enforcement  lien  
is placed  on  the property, which poses enforcement difficulties in the event that the 
property being occupied does not comply with the maintenance of property standards set 
forth in the Code of Ordinances; and 

 
WHEREAS, the  City  Council  wishes  to  prevent  future  instances  of squatting  

in Miami Springs,  and  to ensure  that  provisions  are  in place  to  remove  squatters  
promptly  from properties being unlawfully occupied; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS: 
 

Section 1. That Code of Ordinance Section 103.02, Regulations Against 
Squatting, is hereby created to read as follows:  

 
 
 



 

Regulations Against Squatting 
 

103.02.  The following regulations and procedures are hereby enacted in order to 
prevent the practice of “squatting” in the City. 
(A) Definitions 

 
(1) Squatting is defined as the occupation of private property without 
authorization from the owner or lessee. 
 
(2) Squatters  are defined  as occupants  of  private  property  without  
authorization  from  the owner or lessee. 
 
(3) Lessee is defined to include the lessee, any sublessee, or any other 
legal occupant of the premises. 

 
(B) Squatting Prohibited.  Squatting is hereby declared to constitute a public 
nuisance, and is prohibited in the City of Miami Springs.  
 
(C) Action to Remove Squatters.  A property owner or lessee is required to take      
all lawful measures to prevent or remove squatters. 

 
(D) Penalties.  Any violation of the provisions of this section shall result in a fine 
of $500.00 for each day the violation remains uncured. 

 
(E) Removal of Squatters and L ien for Costs of Removal.  The City is 
authorized to remove squatters from private property and to secure the property.  
The property owner or lessee shall reimburse the City for the expenses 
incurred in removing the squatters and securing the property. If the property 
owner or lessee does not reimburse the City for the cost of removing the 
squatters and securing the property within 30 days of the date the City sends 
an invoice, then the City may lien the property for such costs an administrative 
fee of $500.00 to cover administrative personnel service costs. The City’s lien 
shall constitute a special assessment lien which may be recorded in the public 
records of Miami-Dade County. The lien shall accrue interest at the maximum 
legal rate from the date of the City's invoice until all costs and the administrative 
fee are paid. The City may foreclose on such lien which shall have equal dignity 
with a real property tax lien. 

 
(F) Notice and Hearing.  The City shall post a notice at the property indicating 
its intent to remove squatters and secure the property at least five days in 
advance of any such action.  The City shall also make reasonable efforts to 
separately notify the property owner or lessee.   The City may provide shorter 
notice, or act immediately, without prior notice, where warranted by an 
emergency, such as a danger to the occupants (i.e. unfit dwelling) or threat to 
public safety. Any appeal of the notice must be received by the City within three 



 

days of posting. The failure to appeal constitutes an admission that the occupants 
are squatters and an agreement to the remedy of removal. If an appeal is timely 
received, the City shall set an administrative hearing before the City Manager, 
and the matter shall be heard on an expedited basis prior to the removal of the 
occupants, unless such prior removal is warranted by an emergency, such  as  
a danger to the occupants (i.e. unfit dwelling) or threat to public safety, in 
which case the hearing shall be held on an expedited basis following the 
removal. 

 
(G) Presumption.  Squatting may be presumed where the occupant of the 
property is unable to produce a written document, such as a lease, license, or 
other written proof of authorization from the property owner or lessee, 
demonstrating that the occupant has permission to be on the property. Squatting 
may also be presumed where a property is listed as vacant on the abandoned 
property registry, and yet is occupied. Such presumptions may be rebutted if the 
occupant provides competent, substantial evidence demonstrating authorization 
to be in the premises. The presumptions stated herein are not the exclusive 
method for determining whether squatting is occurring on a specific property. 

 
(H) Cumulative Remedies.  The remedies provided by this ordinance are 
cumulative with all other remedies, including the remedies for trespass, and are 
not exclusive. The City may remove trespassers pursuant to state law, 
including cases where a lawful trespass warning has been provided, and the 
occupants refuse to vacate the property. 

 
(I) Immunization.  Law enforcement and code enforcement officers, as well as 
City staff and agents, are immunized from civil or criminal liability for actions 
taken to remove squatters and secure property pursuant to the authority of this 
ordinance. 

 
Section 2. Severability.  That if any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 

Ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
then said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance. 
 

Section 3. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  That all ordinances or parts of 
ordinances in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed.  

 
Section 4.   Directions to Codifiers.  That the codifiers are hereby directed 

to codify this Ordinance in accordance with their discretion and their prior codification of 
the City of Miami Springs Code of Ordinances. 
 

Section 5.   Effective Date.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 
upon adoption. 
 



 

 
 
 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING this 23rd  day of June, 2014, on a motion made by 

Councilman Bain and seconded by Councilman Petralanda. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this    day of   , 
2014, on a motion made by    and seconded by     . 

 
 

Vice Mayor Lob       
Councilman Windrem       
Councilman Bain       
Councilman Petralanda      
Mayor Garcia     

 
 
 
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
              
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
            
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

Y
  



August 6 for July

General Fund Departments Cost Hours

Office of the City Clerk 1,618.65         11.99
Human Resources Department 498.15            3.69
Risk Management 1,088.10         8.06
Finance Department 1,869.75         13.85
Professional Services 0.00
Building,Zoning & Code Enforcement Department 1,161.00         8.60
Planning 1,296.00         9.60
Police Department 1,013.85         7.51
Public Works Department 357.75            2.65
Recreation Department 638.55            4.73
IT Department 0.00
Golf 388.80            2.88
Senior 0.00
General - Administrative Work 2,502.90         18.54
Sub-total - General Fund $12,433.50 92.10

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds
Golf Course Operations 0.00
L.E.T.F. 0.00
Due from Pension Funds 0.00
Sub-total - Special Funds $0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL:  ALL FUNDS $12,433.50 92.10

The City of Miami Springs
     Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLP



































































1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014 -  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PROVIDING FOR THE 
FOURTH BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE FY 
2013-2014 BUDGET; BY INCREASING THE 
FUND BALANCE AND RECREATION AND 
CULTURE BUDGETS OF THE GENERAL FUND; 
RECORDING THE CON EDISON ENERGY 
CONSERVATION PROJECT, AQUATIC FACILITY 
PROJECT CONSULTANTS CONTRACTS AND 
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE AQUATIC 
FACILITY PROJECT IN THE CAPITAL 
PROJECTS BUDGET OF THE SPECIAL 
REVENUE AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND; 
PROVIDING INTENT; SPECIFYING 
COMPLIANCE WITH BUDGETARY PROCESSES 
AND PROCEDURES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Charter prohibits any City department from incurring expenditures 
in excess of the department’s approved budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Fund Balance and the Recreation and Culture budgets of the City 

General Fund need to be increased by $178,545 to provide for the payment of the Stafford 
Park Renovation and Maintenance Project; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it proper and appropriate to record $1,605,244 for the ConEdison Energy 

Conservation Project and $302,600 for the Aquatic Facility Project Consultants and related 
expenses in the Capital Projects budget of the Special Revenue and Capital Projects fund; 
and, 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the budget increases, recordations, 

and appropriations previously set forth herein are both proper and appropriate, in accordance 
with generally accepted municipal accounting principles, and in the best interests of the City 
and its citizens: 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
 



2 

 

Section 1:  That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby approves and 
authorizes the budgetary amendments and appropriations to the various revenues and 
expenditures of the budgets and funds set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2:  That the City Council approvals and authorizations evidenced herein are 

intended to provide the City with the means to accomplish the purposes and projects identified 
in the recitals of this Resolution and the Exhibit attached hereto. 

 
Section 3:   That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has authorized and 

approved the foregoing budgetary amendments, increases and appropriations in order to 
comply with generally accepted budgetary processes and procedures. 

 
Section 4:  That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption by the City Council. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 

this    day of   , 2014, on a motion by     and seconded 
by     . 

 
 
Vice Mayor Lob        
Councilman Windrem       
Councilman Bain        
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      

 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2013-14  Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Amended Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 4 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $6,724,332 $6,724,332
Excise Taxes 2,675,000               2,675,000               
Licenses & Permits 777,200                  777,200                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 1,963,613               -                               1,963,613               
Charges for Services 1,565,830               -                               1,565,830               
Fines & Forfeitures 470,914                    470,914                  
Miscellaneous 249,962                  249,962                  
Interfund Transfers-In 530,000                  530,000                  
Proceeds from loan 624,996                  624,996                  
Fund Balance 139,990                  $178,545 2          318,535                  

Total General Fund $15,721,837 $178,545 $15,900,382
Expenditures

City Council 140,815 140,815
City Manager 349,603 349,603
City Clerk 245,157   245,157
City Attorney 171,000 171,000
Human Resources 189,516  189,516
Finance-Administration 582,442 582,442
Finance-Professional Services 272,255   272,255
Information Technology 331,508 331,508
Planning 93,447   93,447
Police 5,974,804 5,974,804
Building, Zoning, and Code Enforcement 569,547  569,547
Public Works 1,542,222   1,542,222
Recreation & Culture 2,037,226 178,545 2 2,215,771
Golf Operations 2,529,288 2,529,288
Transfers to other funds 502,541 502,541
Budgeted Increase to reserves 190,466   190,466

Total General Fund 15,721,837 178,545 15,900,382

Sanitation Operations 2,343,880   2,343,880

Stormwater Operations 461,181   461,181

Total Enterprise Funds 2,771,566 $0 $2,805,061
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 906,090   $906,090
 

Senior Center Operations 367,543 0  367,543

Capital Projects 13,388 1,907,844 1,3 1,921,232

Law Enforcement Trust 301,751 0  301,751
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 1,405,772 $1,907,844 $3,496,616

      
G.O. Bonds - Series 1997 699,912 $0  $699,912

Total Debt Service  699,912 $699,912
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $20,895,173 $2,086,389 $22,901,971

Legend:    
 
 1) Budget for $286,000 B&A contract, $12.500 Dunlap contract, and $4100 mailing and printing costs for surveys and save the dat     

 2) Budget for $178,545 for the Stafford Park renovation and maintenance project

 3) Record $1,605,244 Energy Conservation Project with Con Edison






















































































































































































































	Agenda Summary - August 11, 2014 
	3A Yard of the Month - 560 Quail Avenue - Herman J. & Marilyn Steffen 
	5A Minutes - June 23, 2014 Regular Meeting
	5B Minutes - July 2, 2014 Special Meeting 
	5C Minutes - July 24, 2014 Special Meeting 
	7A Ordinance - Second Reading - Commercial Vehicles
	7B Ordinance - Second Reading - Squatting
	8A City Attorney's July Invoice
	8B Florida Superior Sand for Medium Grade Sand
	8C Titleist for Merchandise
	8D RLJ Services for Fertilizing and Topdressing
	8E Hector Turf for Repairs on Equipment
	8F Howard's Fertilizer and Chemical
	8G Vector Fleet Management for Fleet Management Services 
	8H Wrangler Construction for Stormwater Project
	8I Wrangler Construction for Repair of Curb and Sidewalk
	8J Wrangler Construction for Repair of Roadway Damage 
	8K Metro Express for Mokena Drive Stormwater Project
	8L Angel M. Alvarez for Roofing Plan Reviews 
	10A Resolution - Fourth Budget Amendment to FY2013-2014 Budget
	10B Miami Dade County Traffic Engineering Requests
	10C Curtis Mansion Inc. Agreement Amendment
	11B Aquatic Facility Financing Options
	11C Third Quarter Budget Report



